

PROOF

STATE OF IOWA

House Journal

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 2, 2005

Printed daily by the State of Iowa during the sessions of the General Assembly.
An official corrected copy is available for reference in the office of the Chief Clerk.
(The official bound copy will be available after a reasonable time upon adjournment.)

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-second Calendar Day - Thirty-sixth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, March 2, 2005

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:49 a.m., Speaker Rants in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Reverend Chris Bozung, pastor of Cornerstone Church, Marion. He was the guest of Representative Swati Dandekar from Linn County.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Speaker Rants.

The Journal of Tuesday, March 1, 2005 was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

[House File 506](#), by committee on ways and means, a bill for an act relating to tax credit certificates issued by the Iowa capital investment board and providing an effective date.

Read first time and placed on the **ways and means calendar**.

[House File 507](#), by Mertz, a bill for an act providing for the liability of a landowner who provides for drainage.

Read first time and referred to committee on **agriculture**.

[House File 508](#), by Mascher, a bill for an act relating to the licensure of clinical laboratories and imposing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **human resources**.

[House File 509](#), by Winckler, Lensing, Jochum, Wessel-Kroeschell, R. Olson and Berry, a bill for an act relating to the right to counsel in involuntary termination of parental rights proceedings, providing for appropriation of funds for indigent defense provided in

such proceedings, providing an effective date, and providing for retroactive applicability.

Read first time and referred to committee on **human resources**.

[House File 510](#), by Elgin, a bill for an act providing for payroll deduction for county, city, and school district employees for charitable giving.

Read first time and referred to committee on **local government**.

[House File 511](#), by D. Olson, a bill for an act relating to colostrum research by Iowa state university of science and technology, making an appropriation, and providing a contingent effective date.

Read first time and referred to committee on **economic growth**.

[House File 512](#), by committee on local government, a bill for an act relating to city waterworks franchises.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

[House File 513](#), by committee on transportation, a bill for an act relating to the speed limit for vehicular traffic on highways, the fines for violations, and making an appropriation, and relating to court costs for simple misdemeanor offenses and providing a fee.

Read first time and referred to committee on **ways and means**.

[House File 514](#), by Mascher, a bill for an act authorizing the imposition of an income surtax by school districts for school infrastructure purposes.

Read first time and referred to committee on **ways and means**.

[House File 515](#), by Whitaker, a bill for an act relating to decategorization of child welfare funding project requirements involving authority over funding designated for a child welfare funding pool and providing an effective date.

Read first time and referred to committee on **human resources**.

[House File 516](#), by Winckler, Lensing, Jochum, R. Olson, Berry and Wessel-Kroeschell, a bill for an act relating to fines payable for driving without financial liability coverage and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **transportation**.

[House File 517](#), by D. Olson, a bill for an act providing for the purchase of special service credit under the Iowa public employees' retirement system.

Read first time and referred to committee on **state government**.

[House File 518](#), by Mascher, a bill for an act relating to motor vehicle registration fees for certain motor trucks and making an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **transportation**.

[House File 519](#), by Dandekar, Carroll, Huser, Hogg, Kurtenbach, Wise, Petersen and Struyk, a bill for an act relating to the state general fund expenditure limitation and making appropriations to repay certain funds, and providing effective and applicability dates.

Read first time and referred to committee on **appropriations**.

[House File 520](#), by D. Olson, a bill for an act relating to region and grant requirements for the comprehensive substance abuse treatment program administered by the Iowa department of public health.

Read first time and referred to committee on **human resources**.

[House File 521](#), by May, a bill for an act requiring county commissions of veteran affairs to employ an executive director.

Read first time and referred to committee on **state government**.

[House File 522](#), by Mascher, a bill for an act relating to funding for state and local housing trust funds and making appropriations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **appropriations**.

[House File 523](#), by D. Olson, a bill for an act relating to application and eligibility requirements for the reimbursement of expenses associated with the permanent closure of aboveground petroleum storage tanks and providing effective and retroactive applicability dates.

Read first time and referred to committee on **environmental protection**.

[House File 524](#), by Pettengill, Lukan, Soderberg, D. Olson, Wessel-Kroeschell and May, a bill for an act relating to litter control, increasing the fines for scheduled violations, and appropriating funds to counties and the keep Iowa beautiful fund.

Read first time and referred to committee on **transportation**.

[House File 525](#), by Whitaker and Gaskill, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of the quail hunting season.

Read first time and referred to committee on **natural resources**.

On motion by Jacobs of Polk, the House was recessed at 8:57 a.m., until 3:30 p.m.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 3:32 p.m., Speaker Rants in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

[House File 526](#), by committee on education, a bill for an act relating to educator licensing by requiring an annual review of administrative rules adopted by the board of educational examiners and directing the board of educational examiners to convene an educator licensing review working group.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

[House File 527](#), by Struyk, a bill for an act relating to the manner in which a vacancy on a school district board of directors is filled and including effective and applicability date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **education**.

[House File 528](#), by Jochum, Hogg, Wendt, Swaim, Gaskill, Frevert, Mertz, Reasoner, Quirk, Whitead, Petersen, McCarthy, Huser and Miller, a bill for an act allowing individual income tax credits for contributions made to certain school charitable organizations and including an applicability date provision.

Read first time and referred to committee on **ways and means**.

[House File 529](#), by committee on education, a bill for an act relating to the members of the board of educational examiners and the authority of the board regarding complaints.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

[House File 530](#), by Huser and Schickel, a bill for an act allowing merger of certain local law enforcement agencies to create a metropolitan police department and providing certain taxing authority for such a department.

Read first time and referred to committee on **local government**.

[House File 531](#), by committee on human resources, a bill for an act relating to the suspension of a child support obligation.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

[House File 532](#), by committee on state government, a bill for an act relating to the administrative functions of the department of cultural affairs, including the board of trustees of the state historical society of Iowa and the state records commission.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

[House File 533](#), by committee on economic growth, a bill for an act relating to criteria and incentives under the new capital investment program and including an applicability provision.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

[House File 534](#), by committee on local government, a bill for an act relating to the assessment and collection of penalty, fee, and interest charges imposed for the late payment of building code penalties, fines, and inspection and enforcement fees.

Read first time and referred to committee on **ways and means**.

[House File 535](#), by Davitt, a bill for an act extending the deadline for driver's license renewal for peace corps volunteers.

Read first time and referred to committee on **transportation**.

[House File 536](#), by committee on government oversight, a bill for an act relating to dual governmental employment by executive branch officials and state employees.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

[House File 537](#), by committee on commerce, regulation and labor, a bill for an act relating to the investment of public funds by the treasurer of state, state agencies, and political subdivisions including the investment of public funds not covered by federal deposit insurance in certificates of deposit.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

[House File 538](#), by committee on human resources, a bill for an act revising child welfare requirements involving children with mental health, behavioral, or emotional disorders and providing a contingent effective date.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

[House File 539](#), by committee on human resources, a bill for an act relating to the membership of the council with which the director of human services consults regarding the medical assistance program.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

[House File 540](#), by committee on commerce, regulation and labor, a bill for an act prohibiting consideration of certain traffic accidents

occurring in the line of duty during a certified law enforcement officer's employment in establishment of motor vehicle insurance rates.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

The House stood at ease at 3:35 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 4:46 p.m., Speaker Rants in the chair.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS
Regular Calendar

House File 374, a bill for an act relating to veterans by providing for the compensation of members of a county commission of veteran affairs, providing for the issuance of combined hunting and fishing licenses to certain veterans, concerning funds in an account for a state veterans cemetery, and providing an effective date, was taken up for consideration.

Greiner of Washington offered the following amendment **H-1033** filed by her and moved its adoption:

H-1033

- 1 Amend **House File 374** as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 35 the
- 3 following:
- 4 "Sec. ___. **NEW SECTION.** 135.20 HEPATITIS C
- 5 AWARENESS PROGRAM – VETERANS – VACCINATIONS.
- 6 1. The department shall establish and administer a
- 7 hepatitis C awareness program. The goal of the
- 8 program shall be to distribute information to veterans
- 9 regarding the higher incidence of hepatitis C exposure
- 10 and infection among veterans, the dangers presented by
- 11 the disease, and contacts for additional information
- 12 and referrals. For purposes of this section,
- 13 "veteran" means an individual meeting the definition
- 14 contained in section 35.1.
- 15 2. The information to be distributed shall be
- 16 determined by the department by rule, in consultation
- 17 with the commission of veterans affairs. The
- 18 information shall, at a minimum, contain statements
- 19 indicating that:
- 20 a. The federal department of veterans affairs

21 estimates a hepatitis C infection rate in veterans
22 more than three times higher than for the general
23 population.
24 b. The infection rate for Vietnam veterans is
25 estimated to be even higher than for other veterans
26 groups.
27 c. The disease is caused by a bloodborne virus
28 readily transmitted during combat and combat-related
29 emergency medical treatment.
30 d. Many veterans currently carrying the virus were
31 infected prior to the development of medical screening
32 tests.
33 e. The hepatitis C virus often resolves into a
34 chronic infection without symptoms for ten to thirty
35 years before signs of resultant liver disease appear.
36 f. This unusually long latency period makes it
37 difficult to connect current symptoms with an
38 infection that may have actually been contracted
39 during military service decades ago.
40 The information shall also present treatment
41 options and shall specify a procedure to be followed
42 for veterans desiring a medical consultation for
43 screening and treatment purposes. The department
44 shall cooperate with the state commission of veterans
45 affairs regarding distribution of the information to
46 the veterans home, the county commissions of veteran
47 affairs, veterans hospitals, and other appropriate
48 points of distribution."
49 2. Page 2, by inserting after line 16 the
50 following:

Page 2

1 "Sec. ____ VETERANS HEPATITIS C AWARENESS PROGRAM
2 REPORT. The Iowa department of public health shall
3 submit a report to the members of the general assembly
4 by January 1, 2007, regarding the development and
5 distribution of the information required by the
6 section of this Act enacting section 135.20 and any
7 resulting impact."
8 3. Title page, line 4, by inserting after the
9 word "veterans," the following: "establishing a
10 hepatitis C awareness program for veterans,".
11 4. By renumbering as necessary.

Amendment [H-1033](#) was adopted.

Paulsen of Linn moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" ([H.F. 374](#))

The ayes were, 100:

Alons	Anderson	Arnold	Baudler
Bell	Berry	Boal	Bukta
Carroll	Chambers	Cohoon	Dandekar
Davitt	De Boef	Dix	Dolecheck
Drake	Eichhorn	Elgin	Fallon
Foege	Ford	Freeman	Frevert
Gaskill	Gipp	Granzow	Greiner
Heaton	Heddens	Hoffman	Hogg
Horbach	Hunter	Huseman	Huser
Hutter	Jacobs	Jacoby	Jenkins
Jochum	Jones	Kaufmann	Kressig
Kuhn	Kurtenbach	Lalk	Lensing
Lukan	Lykam	Maddox	Mascher
May	McCarthy	Mertz	Miller
Murphy	Oldson	Olson, D.	Olson, R.
Olson, S.	Paulsen	Petersen	Pettengill
Quirk	Raecker	Rasmussen	Rayhons
Reasoner	Reichert	Roberts	Sand
Schickel	Schueller	Shomshor	Shoultz
Smith	Soderberg	Struyk	Swaim
Taylor, D.	Taylor, T.	Thomas	Tjepkes
Tomenga	Tymeson	Upmeyer	Van Engelenhoven
Van Fossen, J.K.	Van Fossen, J.R.	Watts	Wendt
Wessel-Kroeschell	Whitaker	Whitead	Wilderdyke
Winckler	Wise	Zirkelbach	Mr. Speaker
			Rants

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

[House File 276](#), a bill for an act requiring that meetings relating to postsecondary school registration held by the Iowa coordinating council for post-high school education be open to the public, was taken up for consideration.

Schickel of Cerro Gordo moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" ([H.F. 276](#))

The ayes were, 99:

Alons	Anderson	Arnold	Baudler
Bell	Berry	Boal	Bukta
Carroll	Chambers	Cohoon	Dandekar
Davitt	De Boef	Dix	Dolecheck
Drake	Eichhorn	Elgin	Fallon
Foege	Ford	Freeman	Frevert
Gaskill	Gipp	Granzow	Greiner
Heaton	Heddens	Hoffman	Hogg
Horbach	Hunter	Huseman	Huser
Hutter	Jacobs	Jacoby	Jenkins
Jochum	Jones	Kaufmann	Kressig
Kuhn	Kurtenbach	Lalk	Lensing
Lukan	Lykam	Maddox	May
McCarthy	Mertz	Miller	Murphy
Oldson	Olson, D.	Olson, R.	Olson, S.
Paulsen	Petersen	Pettengill	Quirk
Raecker	Rasmussen	Rayhons	Reasoner
Reichert	Roberts	Sands	Schickel
Schueller	Shomshor	Shoultz	Smith
Soderberg	Struyk	Swaim	Taylor, D.
Taylor, T.	Thomas	Tjepkes	Tomenga
Tymeson	Upmeyer	Van Engelenhoven	Van Fossen, J.K.
Van Fossen, J.R.	Watts	Wendt	Wessel-Kroeschell
Whitaker	Whitead	Wilderdyke	Winckler
Wise	Zirkelbach	Mr. Speaker	
		Rants	

The nays were, 1:

Mascher

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

HOUSE FILE 82 WITHDRAWN

Schickel of Cerro Gordo asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House File 82 from further consideration by the House.

House File 312, a bill for an act relating to campaign finance committee reporting, use of committee funds or property, independent expenditures, placement of campaign signs, and use of public resources, was taken up for consideration.

Raecker of Polk offered the following amendment [H-1043](#) filed by him and moved its adoption:

[H-1043](#)

- 1 Amend [House File 312](#) as follows:
- 2 1. By striking page 6, line 32, through page 7,
- 3 line 13.

Amendment [H-1043](#) was adopted.

Pursuant to Rule 31.8, relating to the timely filing of amendments, amendment [H-1045](#) filed by Fallon of Polk from the floor, was placed out of order.

Raecker of Polk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" ([H.F. 312](#))

The ayes were, 99:

Alons	Anderson	Arnold	Baudler
Bell	Berry	Boal	Bukta
Carroll	Chambers	Cohoon	Dandekar
Davitt	De Boef	Dix	Dolecheck
Drake	Eichhorn	Elgin	Fallon
Ford	Freeman	Frevert	Gaskill
Gipp	Granzow	Greiner	Heaton
Heddens	Hoffman	Hogg	Horbach
Hunter	Huseman	Huser	Hutter
Jacobs	Jacoby	Jenkins	Jochum
Jones	Kaufmann	Kressig	Kuhn
Kurtenbach	Lalk	Lensing	Lukan
Lykam	Maddox	Mascher	May
McCarthy	Mertz	Miller	Murphy
Oldson	Olson, D.	Olson, R.	Olson, S.
Paulsen	Petersen	Pettengill	Quirk
Raecker	Rasmussen	Rayhons	Reasoner
Reichert	Roberts	Sands	Schickel
Schueller	Shomshor	Shoultz	Smith
Soderberg	Struyk	Swaim	Taylor, D.
Taylor, T.	Thomas	Tjepkes	Tomenga
Tymeson	Upmeyer	Van Engelenhoven	Van Fossen, J.K.
Van Fossen, J.R.	Watts	Wendt	Wessel-Kroeschell
Whitaker	Whitead	Wilderdyke	Winckler
Wise	Zirkelbach	Mr. Speaker	
		Rants	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 1:

Foegen

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

[House File 541](#), by Ford, a bill for an act relating to healthy student body requirements for school districts.

Read first time and referred to committee on **education**.

[House File 542](#), by Drake, Mertz, De Boef and Greiner, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa soybean association, by providing for its board of directors, market development, and providing for an assessment.

Read first time and referred to committee on **agriculture**.

[House File 543](#), by Ford, a bill for an act relating to direct care workers, including the establishment of a direct care worker advisory council and expansion of the Iowa nurse aide registry, and providing an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **human resources**.

[House File 544](#), by Paulsen, Elgin and Upmeyer, a bill for an act relating to dependent adults and the provision of protective services.

Read first time and referred to committee on **human resources**.

[House File 545](#), by Ford, a bill for an act providing for distribution of gambling receipts from pari-mutuel racetracks and gambling boats for developmental activities within state-designated enterprise zones.

Read first time and referred to committee on **state government**.

[House File 546](#), by Wise, a bill for an act providing for the repeal of specified school finance-related levies, and providing effective dates.

Read first time and referred to committee on **education**.

[House File 547](#), by Ford, an act requiring the state board of regents to periodically review and establish best practices, guidelines, and expectations relating to student-athlete academic excellence, conduct, and recruiting visits.

Read first time and referred to committee on **education**.

[House File 548](#), by Zirkelbach, Murphy, Kressig, Lensing, Wise, Wessel-Kroeschell, Heddens, Whitaker, Bukta, Pettengill, Wendt, Thomas, Kuhn, Mertz, Berry, R. Olson, Jochum, Cohoon, Bell, Lykam, Whitead, Foege, T. Taylor, Hogg, Smith, Huser, Davitt and Gaskill, a bill for an act relating to the requirements for voting machines used in the state.

Read first time and referred to committee on **state government**.

[House File 549](#), by Struyk, Arnold and J.R. Van Fossen, a bill for an act allowing a nonresident person who possesses a valid out-of-state weapons permit to carry weapons in this state under reciprocity conditions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **public safety**.

[House File 550](#), by Miller, a bill for an act creating a community infrastructure and transportation enhancement program and fund, making appropriations, and providing a contingent effective date.

Read first time and referred to committee on **economic growth**.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Jacobs of Polk asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 276, 312 and 374**.

[House File 373](#), a bill for an act relating to equipment dealerships, by providing for the sale or transfer of a dealership and providing for the Act's applicability, was taken up for consideration.

Dix of Butler moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" ([H.F. 373](#))

The ayes were, 100:

Alons	Anderson	Arnold	Baudler
Bell	Berry	Boal	Bukta
Carroll	Chambers	Cohoon	Dandekar
Davitt	De Boef	Dix	Dolecheck
Drake	Eichhorn	Elgin	Fallon
Foege	Ford	Freeman	Frevert
Gaskill	Gipp	Granzow	Greiner
Heaton	Heddens	Hoffman	Hogg
Horbach	Hunter	Huseman	Huser
Hutter	Jacobs	Jacoby	Jenkins
Jochum	Jones	Kaufmann	Kressig
Kuhn	Kurtenbach	Lalk	Lensing
Lukan	Lykam	Maddox	Mascher
May	McCarthy	Mertz	Miller
Murphy	Oldson	Olson, D.	Olson, R.
Olson, S.	Paulsen	Petersen	Pettengill
Quirk	Raecker	Rasmussen	Rayhons
Reasoner	Reichert	Roberts	Sands
Schickel	Schueller	Shomshor	Shoultz
Smith	Soderberg	Struyk	Swaim
Taylor, D.	Taylor, T.	Thomas	Tjepkes
Tomenga	Tymeson	Upmeyer	Van Engelenhoven
Van Fossen, J.K.	Van Fossen, J.R.	Watts	Wendt
Wessel-Kroeschell	Whitaker	Whitead	Wilderdyke
Winckler	Wise	Zirkelbach	Mr. Speaker
			Rants

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

[House File 375](#), a bill for an act relating to the duties imposed on a real estate broker by a brokerage agreement, was taken up for consideration.

Soderberg of Plymouth moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" ([H.F. 375](#))

The ayes were, 100:

Alons	Anderson	Arnold	Baudler
Bell	Berry	Boal	Bukta
Carroll	Chambers	Cohoon	Dandekar
Davitt	De Boef	Dix	Dolecheck
Drake	Eichhorn	Elgin	Fallon
Foege	Ford	Freeman	Frevert
Gaskill	Gipp	Granzow	Greiner
Heaton	Heddens	Hoffman	Hogg
Horbach	Hunter	Huseman	Huser
Hutter	Jacobs	Jacoby	Jenkins
Jochum	Jones	Kaufmann	Kressig
Kuhn	Kurtenbach	Lalk	Lensing
Lukan	Lykam	Maddox	Mascher
May	McCarthy	Mertz	Miller
Murphy	Oldson	Olson, D.	Olson, R.
Olson, S.	Paulsen	Petersen	Pettengill
Quirk	Raecker	Rasmussen	Rayhons
Reasoner	Reichert	Roberts	Sands
Schickel	Schueller	Shomshor	Shoultz
Smith	Soderberg	Struyk	Swaim
Taylor, D.	Taylor, T.	Thomas	Tjepkes
Tomenga	Tymeson	Upmeyer	Van Engelenhoven
Van Fossen, J.K.	Van Fossen, J.R.	Watts	Wendt
Wessel-Kroeschell	Whitaker	Whitead	Wilderdyke
Winckler	Wise	Zirkelbach	Mr. Speaker
			Rants

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Ways and Means Calendar

[House File 400](#), a bill for an act providing for an individual income tax deduction for contributions made to a qualified tuition program established by certain educational institutions and including

effective and retroactive applicability date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Tymeson of Madison moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" ([H.F. 400](#))

The ayes were, 70:

Alons	Anderson	Arnold	Baudler
Bell	Boal	Carroll	Chambers
Dandekar	Davitt	De Boef	Dix
Dolecheck	Drake	Eichhorn	Elgin
Foege	Freeman	Gaskill	Gipp
Granzow	Greiner	Heaton	Hoffman
Hogg	Horbach	Huseman	Huser
Hutter	Jacobs	Jenkins	Jochum
Jones	Kaufmann	Kuhn	Kurtenbach
Lalk	Lukan	Maddox	May
Mertz	Murphy	Olson, R.	Olson, S.
Paulsen	Quirk	Raecker	Rasmussen
Rayhons	Reasoner	Roberts	Sands
Schickel	Shomshor	Soderberg	Struyk
Swaim	Thomas	Tjepkes	Tomenga
Tymeson	Upmeyer	Van Engelenhoven	Van Fossen, J.K.
Van Fossen, J.R.	Watts	Whitaker	Wilderdyke
Zirkelbach	Mr. Speaker		
	Rants		

The nays were, 30:

Berry	Bukta	Cohoon	Fallon
Ford	Frevert	Heddens	Hunter
Jacoby	Kressig	Lensing	Lykam
Mascher	McCarthy	Miller	Oldson
Olson, D.	Petersen	Pettengill	Reichert
Schueller	Shoultz	Smith	Taylor, D.
Taylor, T.	Wendt	Wessel-Kroeschell	Whitead
Winckler	Wise		

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Jacobs of Polk asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 373, 375 and 400.**

Appropriations Calendar

[House File 466](#), a bill for an act relating to and making transportation and other infrastructure-related appropriations to the state department of transportation, including allocation and use of moneys from the road use tax fund, the primary road fund, and the general fund, was taken up for consideration.

Ford of Polk asked and received unanimous consent that amendment [H-1041](#) be deferred.

Hogg of Linn asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment [H-1039](#) filed by him on March 1, 2005.

Petersen of Polk offered amendment [H-1040](#) filed by her as follows:

[H-1040](#)

- 1 Amend [House File 466](#) as follows:
- 2 1. Page 5, by inserting after line 3, the
- 3 following:
- 4 "Sec. NEW SECTION. 307.42 DRIVER'S LICENSE
- 5 SERVICES FOR CITIES.
- 6 1. The department shall maintain a driver's
- 7 license issuance site within the corporate limits of a
- 8 city, which shall be open a minimum of five days per
- 9 week for the issuance and renewal of noncommercial
- 10 driver's licenses and permits, other than class M
- 11 driver's licenses, and nonoperator's identification
- 12 cards.
- 13 2. For purposes of this section, "city" means a
- 14 city with a population in excess of one hundred fifty
- 15 thousand according to the most recent federal
- 16 decennial census."
- 17 2. By renumbering as necessary.

Petersen of Polk offered the following amendment [H-1046](#), to amendment [H-1040](#), filed by her from the floor and moved its adoption:

[H-1046](#)

- 1 Amend the amendment, [H-1040](#), to [House File 466](#) as
- 2 follows:
- 3 1. Page 1, by striking lines 2 through 6 and
- 4 inserting the following:
- 5 ____ Page 2, by inserting after line 22, the
- 6 following:
- 7 "As a condition of this appropriation, the
- 8 department shall maintain a driver's".
- 9 2. Page 1, line 8, by inserting after the word
- 10 "city" the following: "with a population in excess of
- 11 one hundred fifty thousand according to the most
- 12 recent federal decennial census".
- 13 3. Page 1, by striking lines 12 through 17 and
- 14 inserting the following: "cards."

Amendment [H-1046](#) was adopted.

Petersen of Polk moved the adoption of amendment [H-1040](#), as amended.

Roll call was requested by Murphy of Dubuque and Fallon of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment [H-1040](#), as amended, be adopted?" ([H.F. 466](#))

The ayes were, 50:

Bell	Berry	Bukta	Cohon
Dandekar	Davitt	Fallon	Foege
Ford	Frevert	Gaskill	Heddens
Hogg	Hunter	Jacoby	Jochum
Kressig	Kuhn	Lensing	Lykam
Maddox	Mascher	McCarthy	Mertz
Miller	Murphy	Oldson	Olson, D.
Olson, R.	Petersen	Pettengill	Quirk
Reasoner	Reichert	Schueller	Shomshor
Shoultz	Smith	Swaim	Taylor, D.
Taylor, T.	Thomas	Tomenga	Wendt
Wessel-Kroeschell	Whitaker	Whitead	Winckler
Wise	Zirkelbach		

The nays were, 50:

Alons	Anderson	Arnold	Baudler
Boal	Carroll	Chambers	De Boef
Dix	Dolecheck	Drake	Eichhorn
Elgin	Freeman	Gipp	Granzow
Greiner	Heaton	Hoffman	Horbach
Huseman	Huser	Hutter	Jacobs
Jenkins	Jones	Kaufmann	Kurtenbach
Lalk	Lukan	May	Olson, S.
Paulsen	Raecker	Rasmussen	Rayhons
Roberts	Sands	Schickel	Soderberg
Struyk	Tjepkes	Tymeson	Upmeyer
Van Engelenhoven	Van Fossen, J.K.	Van Fossen, J.R.	Watts
Wilderdyke	Mr. Speaker		
	Rants		

Absent or not voting, none.

Amendment [H-1040](#), as amended, lost.

Ford of Polk offered amendment [H-1042](#) filed by him as follows:

[H-1042](#)

- 1 Amend [House File 466](#) as follows:
- 2 1. Page 5, by inserting after line 3 the
- 3 following:
- 4 "Sec. __. Section 307.10, Code 2005, is amended
- 5 by adding the following new subsection:
- 6 NEW SUBSECTION. 15A. Approve any change in the
- 7 location of an existing driver's license issuance site
- 8 operated by the department and the location of any new
- 9 site.
- 10 Sec. __. Section 307.12, Code 2005, is amended by
- 11 adding the following new subsection:
- 12 NEW SUBSECTION. 16. Recommend to the commission
- 13 any proposed location or change in the location of a
- 14 driver's license issuance site operated by the
- 15 department. The director shall hold at least one
- 16 public hearing in the area served by a driver's
- 17 license issuance site prior to recommending a location
- 18 change for an existing site."
- 19 2. By renumbering as necessary.

Huseman of Cherokee rose on a point of order that amendment [H-1042](#) was not germane.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment [H-1042](#) not germane.

Ford of Polk offered amendment [H-1044](#) filed by him as follows:

[H-1044](#)

- 1 Amend [House File 466](#) as follows:
- 2 1. Page 5, by inserting after line 3 the
- 3 following:
- 4 "Sec. Section 307.40, Code 2005, is amended
- 5 to read as follows:
- 6 307.40 COPIES OF CONTRACTS TO LEGISLATIVE SERVICES
- 7 AGENCY.
- 8 The department shall give a copy of each of the
- 9 following contracts to the legislative services
- 10 agency:
- 11 1. Each contract for construction or
- 12 reconstruction of roads, streets, or bridges entered
- 13 into by the department in which the contract price is
- 14 ~~for~~ five million dollars or more ~~to the legislative~~
- 15 ~~services agency.~~
- 16 2. Each contract for lease or purchase of land or
- 17 buildings, other than land or buildings needed for a
- 18 highway construction project, entered into by the
- 19 department in which the contract price or annual lease
- 20 cost is five hundred thousand dollars or more."
- 21 2. By renumbering as necessary.

Huseman of Cherokee rose on a point of order that amendment [H-1044](#) was not germane.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment [H-1044](#) not germane.

Ford of Polk offered the following amendment [H-1041](#), previously deferred, filed by him and moved its adoption:

[H-1041](#)

- 1 Amend [House File 466](#) as follows:
- 2 1. Page 2, by striking lines 20 through 32.

Amendment [H-1041](#) lost.

Huseman of Cherokee moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" ([H.F. 466](#))

The ayes were, 93:

Alons	Anderson	Arnold	Baudler
Bell	Berry	Boal	Bukta
Carroll	Chambers	Cohoon	Dandekar
Davitt	De Boef	Dix	Dolecheck
Drake	Eichhorn	Elgin	Foege
Freeman	Frevert	Gaskill	Gipp
Granzow	Greiner	Heaton	Heddens
Hoffman	Horbach	Huseman	Huser
Hutter	Jacobs	Jacoby	Jenkins
Jochum	Jones	Kaufmann	Kressig
Kuhn	Kurtenbach	Lalk	Lensing
Lukan	Lykam	Maddox	Mascher
May	McCarthy	Mertz	Miller
Murphy	Olson, D.	Olson, S.	Paulsen
Pettengill	Quirk	Raecker	Rasmussen
Rayhons	Reasoner	Reichert	Roberts
Sands	Schickel	Schueller	Shomshor
Shoultz	Smith	Soderberg	Struyk
Swaim	Taylor, D.	Taylor, T.	Thomas
Tjepkes	Tomenga	Tymeson	Upmeyer
Van Engelenhoven	Van Fossen, J.K.	Van Fossen, J.R.	Watts
Wendt	Wessel-Kroeschell	Whitaker	Whitead
Wildurdyke	Winckler	Wise	Zirkelbach
Mr. Speaker			
Rants			

The nays were, 7:

Fallon	Ford	Hogg	Hunter
Oldson	Olson, R.	Petersen	

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

[HOUSE FILE 91](#) WITHDRAWN

Paulsen of Linn asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw [House File 91](#) from further consideration by the House.

[HOUSE FILE 25](#) WITHDRAWN

Tymeson of Madison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw [House File 25](#) from further consideration by the House.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGE

Jacobs of Polk asked and received unanimous consent that [House File 466](#) be immediately messaged to the Senate.

ADOPTION OF [SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 3](#)

Roberts of Carroll called up for consideration [Senate Concurrent Resolution 3](#), a concurrent resolution relating to the compensation of chaplains, officers, and employees of the eighty-first general assembly as follows:

Page 1

1 SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 3
 2 BY COMMITTEE ON RULES AND ADMINISTRATION
 3 A Concurrent Resolution relating to the compensation
 4 of chaplains, officers, and employees of the
 5 ~~eightieth~~ eighty-first general assembly.
 6 WHEREAS, section 2.11 of the Code provides that
 7 "The compensation of the chaplains, officers, and
 8 employees of the general assembly shall be fixed by
 9 joint action of the house and senate by resolution at
 10 the opening of each session, or as soon thereafter as
 11 conveniently can be done.", NOW THEREFORE,
 12 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SENATE, THE HOUSE OF
 13 REPRESENTATIVES CONCURRING, ~~That the compensation for~~
 14 ~~the following officers for the period commencing~~
 15 ~~January 13, 2003 and ending January 10, 2005, shall be~~
 16 ~~within the following ranges:~~
 17 Secretary of the Senate and Chief
 18 Clerk of the House..... \$63,024 to \$100,581
 19 Within the indicated ranges the exact compensation
 20 shall be set or adjusted for the senate officers by
 21 the senate rules and administration committee and for
 22 the house officers by the house administration and
 23 rules committee. The committees shall report the
 24 exact compensation assigned to each position on the
 25 next legislative day, or, if such action is during the
 26 interim, on the first day the senate or house shall
 27 convene. Any action by the senate or house to
 28 disapprove or amend the report shall be effective the
 29 day after the action.
 30 ~~BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the compensation of~~

Page 2

1 the employees of the ~~eightieth~~ eighty-first general
 2 assembly is set, effective from ~~January 13, 2003~~

3 January 10, 2005, until January 10, 2005 January 8,
 4 2007, in accordance with the following salary
 5 schedule:
 6 #9
 7 \$15,828.80
 8 7.61
 9
 10 #10 #11 #12 #13 #14
 11 \$16,702.40 \$17,576.00 \$18,449.60 \$19,344.00 \$20,384.00
 12 8.03 8.45 8.87 9.30 9.80
 13
 14 #15 #16 #17 #18 #19
 15 \$21,465.60 \$22,547.20 \$23,524.80 \$24,710.40 \$25,812.80
 16 10.32 10.84 11.31 11.88 12.41
 17
 18 #20 #21 #22 #23 #24
 19 \$27,164.80 \$28,371.20 \$29,764.80 \$31,241.60 \$32,656.00
 20 13.06 13.64 14.31 15.02 15.70
 21
 22 #25 #26 #27 #28 #29
 23 \$34,200.20 \$35,880.00 \$37,627.20 \$39,478.40 \$41,350.40
 24 16.40 17.25 18.00 18.98 19.88
 25
 26 #30 #31 #32 #33 #34
 27 \$43,347.20 \$45,468.80 \$47,569.60 \$49,920.00 \$52,249.60
 28 20.84 21.86 22.87 24.00 25.12
 29
 30 #35 #36 #37 #38 #39

Page 3

1 \$54,745.60 \$57,387.20 \$60,174.40 \$63,024.00 \$66,102.40
 2 26.32 27.50 28.93 30.30 31.78
 3
 4 #40 #41 #42 #43 #44
 5 \$69,284.80 \$72,612.80 \$76,169.60 \$79,684.80 \$83,595.200
 6 33.31 34.91 36.62 38.31 40.19
 7
 8 #45 #46 #47 #48 #49
 9 \$87,609.60 \$91,790.40 \$96,179.20 \$100,580.80 \$110,739.20
 10 42.12 44.13 46.24 50.76 53.24
 11
 12 #9
 13 \$16,473.60
 14 7.92
 15
 16 #10 #11 #12 #13 #14
 17 \$17,368.00 \$18,283.20 \$19,198.40 \$20,134.40 \$21,216.00
 18 8.35 8.79 9.23 9.68 10.20
 19
 20 #15 #16 #17 #18 #19
 21 \$22,339.20 \$23,462.40 \$24,481.60 \$25,708.80 \$26,852.80

22	<u>10.74</u>	<u>11.28</u>	<u>11.77</u>	<u>12.36</u>	<u>12.91</u>
23					
24	<u>#20</u>	<u>#21</u>	<u>#22</u>	<u>#23</u>	<u>#24</u>
25	<u>\$28,267.20</u>	<u>\$29,515.20</u>	<u>\$30,971.20</u>	<u>\$32,510.40</u>	<u>\$33,966.40</u>
26	<u>13.59</u>	<u>14.19</u>	<u>14.89</u>	<u>15.63</u>	<u>16.33</u>
27					
28	<u>#25</u>	<u>#26</u>	<u>#27</u>	<u>#28</u>	<u>#29</u>
29	<u>\$35,692.80</u>	<u>\$37,336.00</u>	<u>\$39,145.60</u>	<u>\$41,080.00</u>	<u>\$43,035.20</u>
30	<u>17.16</u>	<u>17.95</u>	<u>18.82</u>	<u>19.75</u>	<u>20.69</u>

Page 4

1					
2	<u>#30</u>	<u>#31</u>	<u>#32</u>	<u>#33</u>	<u>#34</u>
3	<u>\$45,115.20</u>	<u>\$47,320.00</u>	<u>\$49,504.00</u>	<u>\$51,937.60</u>	<u>\$54,350.40</u>
4	<u>21.69</u>	<u>22.75</u>	<u>23.80</u>	<u>24.97</u>	<u>26.13</u>
5					
6	<u>#35</u>	<u>#36</u>	<u>#37</u>	<u>#38</u>	<u>#39</u>
7	<u>\$56,971.20</u>	<u>\$59,696.00</u>	<u>\$62,608.00</u>	<u>\$65,582.40</u>	<u>\$68,785.60</u>
8	<u>27.39</u>	<u>28.70</u>	<u>30.10</u>	<u>31.53</u>	<u>33.07</u>
9					
10	<u>#40</u>	<u>#41</u>	<u>#42</u>	<u>#43</u>	<u>#44</u>
11	<u>\$72,092.80</u>	<u>\$75,545.60</u>	<u>\$79,248.00</u>	<u>\$82,908.80</u>	<u>\$86,964.80</u>
12	<u>34.66</u>	<u>36.32</u>	<u>38.10</u>	<u>39.86</u>	<u>41.81</u>
13					
14	<u>#45</u>	<u>#46</u>	<u>#47</u>	<u>#48</u>	<u>#49</u>
15	<u>\$91,145.60</u>	<u>\$95,492.80</u>	<u>\$100,048.00</u>	<u>\$104,852.80</u>	<u>\$109,865.60</u>
16	<u>43.82</u>	<u>45.91</u>	<u>48.10</u>	<u>50.41</u>	<u>52.82</u>
17					
18	<u>#50</u>				
19	<u>\$115,211.20</u>				
20	<u>55.39</u>				

21 In this schedule, each numbered block shall be the
 22 yearly and hourly compensation for the pay grade of
 23 the number heading the block. Within each grade there
 24 shall be ~~six~~ seven steps numbered "1" through "~~6~~" "7".
 25 In the above schedule the steps for all grades are
 26 determined in the following manner. Each numbered
 27 block is counted as the "1" step for that grade. The
 28 next higher block is counted as the "2" step; the next
 29 higher block is the "3" step; the next higher block is
 30 the "4" step; the next higher block is the "5" step;

Page 5

1 the next higher block is the "6" step; and the next
 2 higher block is the "7" step.
 3 Alternatively, the senate rules and administration
 4 committee for senate employees, and the house
 5 administration and rules committee for house employees
 6 may allow their employees' compensation to be flexibly
 7 set anywhere between steps "1" through "~~6~~" "7" for an

8 employee's prescribed pay grade.

9 All employees shall be available to work daily
10 until completion of the senate's and house of
11 representatives' business. The employee's division
12 supervisor shall schedule all employees' working hours
13 to, as far as possible, maintain regular working
14 hours.

15 All employees, other than those designated "part-
16 time", shall be compensated for 40 hours of work in a
17 one-week pay period. Secretaries to senators and
18 representatives are presumed to have 36 hours of work
19 each week the legislature is in session and shall be
20 paid only on that basis. Full-time employees who are
21 required to work in excess of 80 hours in a two-week
22 pay period shall be allowed compensatory time off at a
23 rate of one hour for each hour of overtime up to a
24 maximum of 120 hours of compensatory time. Joint
25 security employees of the senate and house of
26 representatives may be compensated for each hour of
27 overtime at a rate of pay equal to one-and-one-half
28 times the hourly pay provided.

29 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That part-time employees
30 shall be compensated at the scheduled hourly rate for

Page 6

1 their pay grade and step.

2 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in the event the
3 salary schedule for employees of the State of Iowa as
4 promulgated by the ~~personnel commission department of~~
5 ~~administrative services~~ pursuant to section ~~19A.9~~
6 ~~8A.413~~, subsection 2, is revised upward at any time
7 during the ~~eightieth~~ ~~eighty-first~~ general assembly,
8 such revised schedule shall simultaneously be adopted
9 for the compensation of the employees of the ~~eightieth~~
10 ~~eighty-first~~ general assembly assigned a grade by this
11 resolution, unless otherwise provided by the senate
12 and house of representatives. ~~The pay ranges of those~~
13 ~~positions specifically listed on page one of this~~
14 ~~resolution shall be automatically adjusted to reflect~~
15 ~~any cost of living increases granted to those~~
16 ~~employees not included in the collective bargaining~~
17 ~~agreements made final under chapter 20 of the Code and~~
18 ~~increases provided by the legislative council for~~
19 ~~agency directors.~~

20 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That adjustments in the
21 positions and compensation listed in this resolution
22 may be made through an ~~annual~~ interim review of all
23 legislative employees for internal equity and to
24 assure compliance with appropriate legal standards for
25 granting of overtime and compensatory time off. Such
26 review shall be conducted by a legislative committee

27 made up of members of the service committee of
 28 legislative council and the appropriate salary
 29 subcommittees of the senate and house. Only one such
 30 review may be done in any fiscal year and adjustments

Page 7

1 suggested must be approved by the appropriate hiring
 2 body.
 3 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the employees of the
 4 ~~eightieth~~ eighty-first general assembly be placed in
 5 the following pay grades:
 6 EMPLOYEES OF THE HOUSE
 7 Chief Clerk of the House Grade 44
 8 Sr. Assistant Chief Clerk of the House..... Grade 41
 9 Assistant Chief Clerk of the House III..... Grade 38
 10 Assistant Chief Clerk of the House II Grade 35
 11 Assistant Chief Clerk of the House I..... Grade 32
 12 Legal Counsel II..... Grade 35
 13 Legal Counsel I Grade 32
 14 Legal Counsel..... Grade 30
 15 Sr. Caucus Staff Director Grade 41
 16 Caucus Staff Director Grade 38
 17 Administrative Assistant to Leader
 18 or Speaker Grade 27
 19 Administrative Assistant I to Leader
 20 or Speaker Grade 29
 21 Administrative Assistant II to Leader
 22 or Speaker Grade 32
 23 Administrative Assistant III to Leader
 24 or Speaker Grade 35
 25 Sr. Administrative Assistant to
 26 Leader or Speaker..... Grade 38
 27 Research Assistant Grade 24
 28 Legislative Research Analyst..... Grade 27
 29 Legislative Research Analyst I Grade 29
 30 Legislative Research Analyst II..... Grade 32

Page 8

1 Legislative Research Analyst III Grade 35
 2 Sr. Legislative Research Analyst..... Grade 38
 3 Assistant Secretary to Leader
 4 or Speaker Grade 18
 5 Secretary to Leader or Speaker Grade 19
 6 Caucus Secretary Grade 21
 7 Senior Caucus Secretary Grade 24
 8 Administrative Secretary to Leader,
 9 Speaker, or Chief Clerk..... Grade 21
 10 Executive Secretary to Leader,
 11 Speaker or Chief Clerk Grade 24
 12 Confidential Secretary to Leader,

13	Speaker, or Chief Clerk.....	Grade 27
14	Confidential Secretary II to Leader,	
15	Speaker or Chief Clerk.....	Grade 32
16	Clerk to Chief Clerk.....	Grade 16
17	Supervisor of Secretaries.....	Grade 21
18	Supervisor of Secretaries I.....	Grade 24
19	Supervisor of Secretaries II.....	Grade 27
20	Senior Editor.....	Grade 30
21	Editor II.....	Grade 25
22	Editor I.....	Grade 22
23	Assistant Editor.....	Grade 19
24	Compositor/Desk Top Specialist.....	Grade 17
25	Sr. Text Processor.....	Grade 25
26	Text Processor II.....	Grade 22
27	Text Processor I.....	Grade 19
28	<u>Senior Finance Officer III.....</u>	<u>Grade 38</u>
29	Senior Finance Officer II.....	Grade 35
30	Senior Finance Officer I.....	Grade 31

Page 9

1	Finance Officer II.....	Grade 27
2	Finance Officer I.....	Grade 24
3	Assistant Finance Officer.....	Grade 21
4	Recording Clerk II.....	Grade 24
5	Recording Clerk I.....	Grade 21
6	Assistant Legal Counsel.....	Grade 27
7	Engrossing & Enrolling Processor.....	Grade 27
8	Assistant to the Legal Counsel.....	Grade 19
9	Senior Indexer.....	Grade 28
10	Indexer II.....	Grade 25
11	Indexer I.....	Grade 22
12	Indexing Assistant.....	Grade 19
13	Supply Clerk.....	Grade 16
14	Switchboard Operator.....	Grade 14
15	Legislative Secretary.....	Grade 15
16	Legislative Committee Secretary.....	Grade 17
17	Bill Clerk.....	Grade 14
18	Assistant Bill Clerk.....	Grade 12
19	Postmaster.....	Grade 12
20	Sergeant-at-Arms II.....	Grade 20
21	Sergeant-at-Arms I.....	Grade 17
22	Assistant Sergeant-at-Arms.....	Grade 14
23	Chief Doorkeeper.....	Grade 12
24	Doorkeepers.....	Grade 11
25	Pages.....	Grade 9
26	EMPLOYEES OF THE SENATE	
27	<u>Secretary of the Senate.....</u>	<u>Grade 44</u>
28	Sr. Assistant Secretary of the Senate.....	Grade 41
29	Assistant Secretary of the Senate III.....	Grade 38
30	Assistant Secretary of the Senate II.....	Grade 35

Page 10

1	Assistant Secretary of the Senate.....	Grade 32
2	Legal Counsel II.....	Grade 35
3	Legal Counsel I.....	Grade 32
4	Legal Counsel.....	Grade 30
5	Sr. Caucus Staff Director	Grade 41
6	Caucus Staff Director	Grade 38
7	Administrative Assistant to Leader	
8	or President.....	Grade 27
9	Administrative Assistant I to Leader	
10	or President.....	Grade 29
11	Administrative Assistant II to Leader	
12	or President.....	Grade 32
13	Administrative Assistant III to Leader	
14	or President.....	Grade 35
15	Sr. Administrative Assistant to	
16	Leader or President	Grade 38
17	Research Assistant	Grade 24
18	Legislative Research Analyst.....	Grade 27
19	Legislative Research Analyst I.....	Grade 29
20	Legislative Research Analyst II.....	Grade 32
21	Legislative Research Analyst III.....	Grade 35
22	Sr. Legislative Research Analyst.....	Grade 38
23	Caucus Secretary <u>II</u>	Grade 21
24	Senior Caucus Secretary	Grade 24
25	Secretary to Leader, or President, <u>or</u>	Grade 19
26	<u>Caucus</u>	<u>18</u>
27	Administrative Secretary to Leader, President,	
28	or Secretary of the Senate.....	Grade 21
29	Executive Secretary to Leader, President,	
30	or Secretary of the Senate.....	Grade 24

Page 11

1	Confidential Secretary to Leader, President,	
2	or Secretary of the Senate.....	Grade 27
3	Confidential Secretary II to Leader, President,	
4	or Secretary of the Senate.....	Grade 32
5	Supervisor of Secretaries.....	Grade 21
6	Supervisor of Secretaries I.....	Grade 24
7	Supervisor of Secretaries II.....	Grade 27
8	Senior Editor.....	Grade 30
9	Editor II.....	Grade 25
10	Editor I.....	Grade 22
11	Assistant Editor.....	Grade 19
12	Compositor/Desk Top Specialist	Grade 17
13	Assistant Legal Counsel.....	Grade 27
14	Assistant to the Legal Counsel	Grade 19
15	Proofreader.....	Grade 16
16	<u>Senior Finance Officer III</u>	<u>Grade 38</u>
17	Senior Finance Officer II.....	Grade 35

18	Senior Finance Officer I	Grade 31
19	Finance Officer II.....	Grade 27
20	Finance Officer I.....	Grade 24
21	Assistant Finance Officer.....	Grade 21
22	Recording Clerk II	Grade 24
23	Recording Clerk I.....	Grade 21
24	Senior Indexer.....	Grade 28
25	Indexer II	Grade 25
26	Indexer I.....	Grade 22
27	Indexing Assistant.....	Grade 19
28	Records and Supply Clerk.....	Grade 18
29	Switchboard Operator	Grade 14
30	Legislative Secretary.....	Grade 15

Page 12

1	Legislative Committee Secretary.....	Grade 17
2	Bill Clerk.....	Grade 14
3	Assistant Bill Clerk	Grade 12
4	Postmaster	Grade 12
5	Sergeant-at-Arms II	Grade 20
6	Sergeant-at-Arms I.....	Grade 17
7	Assistant Sergeant-at-Arms.....	Grade 14
8	Chief Doorkeeper	Grade 12
9	Doorkeepers	Grade 11
10	Pages.....	Grade 9
11	JOINT SENATE/HOUSE EMPLOYEES	
12	Facilities Manager I	Grade 35
13	Facilities Manager II.....	Grade 38
14	Sr. Facilities Manager	Grade 41
15	Legislative Security Secretary	Grade 19
16	<u>Legislative Security Coordinator I</u>	<u>Grade 23</u>
17	<u>Legislative Security Coordinator II.....</u>	<u>Grade 26</u>
18	Legislative Security Officer I.....	Grade 20
19	Legislative Security Officer II.....	Grade 23
20	Conservation/Restoration Specialist II.....	Grade 31
21	<u>Sr. Copy Center Operator.....</u>	<u>Grade 21</u>
22	BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be four	
23	classes of appointments as employees of the general	
24	assembly:	
25	A "permanent full-time" or "permanent part-time"	
26	employee is one who is employed the year around and	
27	eligible to receive state benefits.	
28	An "exempt full-time" employee is one who is	
29	employed for <u>only a portion of the year, usually the</u>	
30	period of the <u>legislative</u> sessions with extensions	

Page 13

1	post-session and pre-session as scheduled. This class
2	is eligible to receive state benefits with the cost of
3	benefits to the state to be paid, <u>using accrued leave</u>

4 if authorized, by the employee when not on the
5 payroll.

6 A "session-only" employee is one who is employed
7 for only a portion of the year, usually the
8 legislative session. This class is not eligible for
9 state benefits, except IPERS, and insurance as
10 provided in section 2.40.

11 A "part-time" employee is one who is employed to
12 work less than 40 hours per week. This class is not
13 eligible for state benefits, except IPERS if eligible.

14 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the exact
15 classification for individuals in a job series created
16 by this resolution shall be set or changed for senate
17 employees by the senate rules and administration
18 committee and for the house employees by the house
19 administration and rules committee. The committees
20 shall base the classification upon the following
21 factors:

22 1. The extent of formal education required of the
23 position; and,

24 2. The extent of the responsibilities to be
25 assigned to the position; and,

26 3. The amount of supervision placed over the
27 position; and,

28 4. The number of persons the position is assigned
29 to supervise and skills and responsibilities of those
30 positions supervised.

Page 14

1 The committees shall report the exact
2 classifications assigned to each individual on the
3 next legislative day, or, if such action is during the
4 interim, on the first day the senate or house shall
5 convene. Any action by the senate or house to
6 disapprove a report or a portion of a report shall be
7 effective the day after the action.

8 Recommendations for a pay grade for a new position
9 shall be developed in accordance with the factor
10 scores in the comparable worth report. Beginning in
11 1999, every four years the senate rules and
12 administration committee, the house administration and
13 rules committee, and the legislative council may
14 review all positions in the legislative branch to
15 assure conformity to comparable worth.

16 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a senator or
17 representative may employ a secretary who in the
18 judgment of the senator or representative employing
19 such person, possesses the necessary skills to perform
20 the duties such senator or representative shall
21 designate, under the administrative direction, as
22 appropriate, of the secretary of the senate or the

23 chief clerk of the house.
 24 Each standing committee chairperson, ethics
 25 committee chairperson, and each appropriations
 26 subcommittee chairperson shall designate a secretary
 27 who is competent to perform the following duties:
 28 prepare committee minutes, committee reports, type
 29 committee correspondence, maintain committee records,
 30 and otherwise assist the committee. Such duties shall

Page 15

1 be performed in accordance with standards which shall
 2 be provided by the secretary of the senate and chief
 3 clerk of the house. In making the designation,
 4 chairpersons shall consider persons for possible
 5 designation as the secretary to the committee in the
 6 following order:
 7 First: The secretary to the chairperson.
 8 Second: The secretary to the committee's vice-
 9 chairperson.
 10 Third: The secretary to any other member of the
 11 committee.
 12 Fourth: The secretary to any other member in the
 13 same house as the committee.
 14 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a Legal Counsel II
 15 shall be a person who has graduated from an accredited
 16 school of law and is admitted to practice in Iowa as
 17 an Attorney and Counselor at Law and possesses either
 18 a Masters of Law degree or has at least two years of
 19 legal experience after admission to practice.
 20 A Legal Counsel I shall be a person who has
 21 graduated from an accredited school of law and is
 22 admitted to practice in Iowa as an Attorney and
 23 Counselor at Law.
 24 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees of the
 25 general assembly may be eligible for either:
 26 a) increases in salary grade ~~or step~~ based on
 27 evaluation of their job performance and
 28 recommendations of their administrative officers,
 29 subject to approval of the senate committee on rules
 30 and administration or the house committee on

Page 16

1 administration and rules, as appropriate, provided,
 2 however, that for promotions ~~between classes with a~~
 3 ~~three or more pay grade difference~~, the employee shall
 4 be given a ~~two-step~~ one-step increase in pay or the
 5 employee's salary shall be adjusted to the entry level
 6 in the grade of the new position, whichever is
 7 greater; or
 8 b) mobility within a pay grade at the discretion

9 of the chief clerk of the house upon recommendation by
10 the employee's division supervisor on the part of the
11 house, and the discretion of the employee's division
12 supervisor on the part of the senate, subject to the
13 approval of the house committee on administration and
14 rules or the senate committee on rules and
15 administration, as appropriate -- either in accord
16 with a flexible pay plan approved by the senate rules
17 and administration committee or the house
18 administration and rules committee, or in accord with
19 the following schedule:

20 (1) Progression from step "1" to "2" for a newly
21 hired employee -- six months of actual employment.

22 (2) Progression from step "1" to "2" following
23 promotion within a job series -- twelve months of
24 actual employment in that position.

25 (3) Progression from step "2" to "3", and step "3"
26 to "4", and step "4" to "5", and step "5" to "6", and
27 step "6" to "7" -- twelve months of actual employment
28 at the lower step.

29 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, ~~that~~ That in addition to
30 the steps provided in the preceding paragraph, that

Page 17

1 secretaries to senators and representatives who were
2 employees of the senate or house of representatives
3 during any general assembly prior to January 9, 1989,
4 and who have received certification for passing a
5 typing and shorthand performance examination shall be
6 eligible for two additional steps.

7 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in addition to the
8 steps provided in the preceding paragraph, that
9 secretaries to senators and representatives shall be
10 eligible for a maximum of three additional grades
11 beyond grade 15, in any combination, as provided in
12 this paragraph:

13 1. One additional grade for a secretary to a
14 standing committee chair, ethics committee chair or
15 appropriations subcommittee chair who is not the
16 designated committee secretary.

17 2. One additional grade for a secretary to a vice-
18 chairperson or ranking member of a standing committee,
19 ethics committee or appropriations subcommittee.

20 3. One additional grade for a secretary to the
21 chairperson of the chaplain's committee.

22 4. Two additional grades for a secretary to an
23 assistant floor leader or speaker pro tempore or
24 president pro tempore.

25 5. One additional grade for a designated committee
26 secretary who is also the designated committee
27 secretary for an additional standing committee, ethics

28 committee, or appropriations subcommittee.
 29 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in the event the
 30 secretary to the chairperson of the chaplain's

Page 18

1 committee is the secretary to the president, president
 2 pro tempore, speaker, speaker pro tempore, or the
 3 majority or minority leader, such secretary shall
 4 receive one additional step.
 5 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the entrance salary
 6 for employees of the general assembly shall be at step
 7 1 in the grade of the position held. Such employee
 8 may be hired above the entrance step if possessing
 9 outstanding and unusual experience for the position,
 10 ~~provided that the entrance is not beyond step 3.~~ Such
 11 employee who is hired above the entrance step shall be
 12 mobile above that step in the same period of time as
 13 other employees in that same step. An officer or
 14 employee who is moved to another position may be
 15 considered for partial or full credit for their
 16 experience in the former position in determining the
 17 step in the new grade.
 18 The entry level for the position of research
 19 analyst shall be Legislative Research Analyst, unless
 20 extraordinary conditions justify increasing that entry
 21 level; ~~however, that entry level may not be increased~~
 22 ~~beyond Legislative Research Analyst I. A research~~
 23 ~~analyst must have shown knowledge of legislative rules~~
 24 ~~and procedures as well as the Code of Iowa to be~~
 25 ~~considered at any level above a Legislative Research~~
 26 ~~Analyst.~~
 27 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a pay increase for
 28 employees of one step within the pay grade for the
 29 position may be made for exceptionally meritorious
 30 service in addition to step increases provided for in

Page 19

1 this resolution, at the discretion of the chief clerk
 2 upon recommendation by the employee's division
 3 supervisor on the part of the house, and upon
 4 recommendation by the employee's division supervisor
 5 on the part of the senate, and the approval of the
 6 senate committee on rules and administration or the
 7 house committee on administration and rules.
 8 Exceptionally meritorious service pay increases shall
 9 be governed by the following:
 10 a. The employee must have served in the position
 11 for at least twelve months;
 12 b. Written justification, setting forth in detail
 13 the nature of the exceptionally meritorious service

14 rendered, must be submitted to the senate rules and
15 administration committee or house administration and
16 rules committee and approved in advance of granting
17 the pay increase;

18 c. No more than one exceptionally meritorious
19 service pay increase may be granted in any twelve-
20 month period.

21 d. Such meritorious service pay increase shall not
22 be granted beyond the ~~six-step~~ seven-step maximum for
23 that position.

24 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the senate rules and
25 administration committee and the house administration
26 and rules committee shall both hire officers and
27 employees for their respective bodies and fill any
28 vacancies which may occur, to be effective at such
29 time as they shall set. The committee shall report
30 the names of those it has hired for the positions

Page 20

1 specified in this resolution or the filling of any
2 vacancies on the next legislative day or, if such
3 action is during the interim, on the first day the
4 senate or house shall convene. Any action by the
5 senate or house to amend or disapprove a report or a
6 portion of a report shall be effective the day after
7 the action.

8 The chief clerk of the house shall submit to the
9 house committee on administration and rules and the
10 secretary of the senate shall submit to the senate
11 committee on rules and administration the list of
12 names, or amendments thereto, of employee
13 classifications and recommended pay step for each
14 officer and employee. Such list shall include
15 recommendations for the pay step for all employees.
16 Each respective committee shall approve or amend the
17 list of recommended classifications and pay steps and
18 publish said list in the journal.

19 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That permanent employees of
20 the general assembly shall receive vacation
21 allowances, sick leave, health and accident insurance,
22 life insurance, and disability income insurance as are
23 comparably provided for full-time permanent state
24 employees. The computations shall be maintained by
25 the finance officers in each house and coordinated
26 with the department of ~~revenue and finance~~
27 administrative services.

28 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That should any employee
29 have a grievance, the grievance shall be resolved as
30 provided by procedures determined by the senate rules

Page 21

1 and administration committee for senate employees or
2 the house administration and rules committee for house
3 employees.

4 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the legislative
5 council ~~adopt a resolution similar take action to this~~
6 ~~resolution which provides for the~~ provide the same
7 compensation and benefits ~~of to~~ all legislative
8 central staff agency employees for the ~~eightieth~~
9 ~~eighty-first~~ general assembly as is provided by this
10 ~~resolution. The resolution shall be adopted as soon~~
11 ~~as practicable after the convening of the eightieth~~
12 ~~general assembly, and published in the journals of the~~
13 ~~senate and house.~~

14 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the compensation of
15 chaplains officiating at the opening of the daily
16 sessions of the house of representatives and the
17 senate of the ~~eightieth~~ eighty-first general assembly
18 be fixed at ten dollars for each house of the general
19 assembly, and that mileage ~~for chaplains be fixed at~~
20 ~~the rate of twenty nine cents per mile to and from the~~
21 State Capitol for chaplains be fixed at the rate
22 established for members of the general assembly.

Roberts of Carroll offered the following amendment [H-1032](#) filed by the committee on administration and rules and moved its adoption:

[H-1032](#)

1 Amend [Senate Concurrent Resolution 3](#), as passed by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. By striking page 15, line 26, through page 16,
4 line 7, and inserting the following:
5 "a) increases in salary grade or step based on
6 evaluation of their job performance and
7 recommendations of their administrative officers,
8 subject to approval of the senate committee on rules
9 and administration or the house committee on
10 administration and rules, as appropriate, ~~provided,~~
11 ~~however, that for promotions between classes with a~~
12 ~~three or more pay grade difference, the employee shall~~
13 ~~be given a two step increase in pay or the employee's~~
14 ~~salary shall be adjusted to the entry level in the~~
15 ~~grade of the new position, whichever is greater; or".~~

The committee amendment [H-1032](#) was adopted.

On motion by Roberts of Carroll the resolution, as amended, was adopted.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGE

Jacobs of Polk asked and received unanimous consent that [Senate Concurrent Resolution 3](#) be immediately messaged to the Senate.

REPORT OF THE CHIEF CLERK OF THE HOUSE

Mr. Speaker: Pursuant to House Rule 42, I report that in engrossing bills the following corrections were made:

[House File 216](#)

1. Page 9, line 12 – Change lead-in to read as follows:
“Sec. 16. Section 321.191, subsection 7, Code 2005, is amended to read as follows:”.

[House File 312](#)

1. Title page, line 2 – Add the word “and” after “expenditures,”.
2. Title page, line 3 – Delete the words “, and use of public resources”.

MARGARET A. THOMSON
Chief Clerk of the House

BILL ENROLLED, SIGNED AND SENT TO GOVERNOR

The Chief Clerk of the House submitted the following report:

Mr. Speaker: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following bill has been examined and found correctly enrolled, signed by the Speaker of the House and the President of the Senate, and presented to the Governor for his approval on this 2nd day of March, 2005: [House File 175](#).

MARGARET A. THOMSON
Chief Clerk of the House

Report adopted.

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that certificates of recognition have been issued as follows.

MARGARET A. THOMSON
Chief Clerk of the House

- 2005\591 Hannah Tesdall, Story City – For celebrating her 100th birthday.
- 2005\592 T.J. Sebolt, Centerville – For receiving 1st place in the 119 lb. weight class in the Class 2-A Division of the 2005 State Wrestling Tournament.
- 2005\593 Pat McCaffrey, Centerville – For receiving 1st place in the 112 lb. weight class in the Class 2-A Division of the 2005 State Wrestling Tournament.
- 2005\594 Helen Bie, Ames – For celebrating her 90th birthday.
- 2005\595 Ethel Pierce, Ames – For celebrating her 85th birthday.
- 2005\596 Owen Wilmot, Ames – For celebrating his 80th birthday.
- 2005\597 Betty Cue, Ames – For celebrating her 80th birthday.
- 2005\598 Everett Tett, Ames – For celebrating his 80th birthday.
- 2005\599 Willis Skrdla, Ames – For celebrating his 85th birthday.
- 2005\600 Ernest Horn, Ames – For celebrating his 85th birthday.
- 2005\601 Robert C. Bullis, Waterloo – For celebrating his 80th birthday.
- 2005\602 Virginia Phelps, Waterloo – For celebrating her 90th birthday.
- 2005\603 Virginia Miller, Waterloo – For celebrating her 85th birthday.
- 2005\604 Tony Lovstuen, Centerville – For receiving 2nd place in the 135 lb. weight class in the Class 2-A Division of the 2005 State Wrestling Tournament.
- 2005\605 Leonard and Maurine Amendt, Sutherland – For celebrating their 50th wedding anniversary.
- 2005\606 Gerrit and Erma DeJong, Sibley – For celebrating their 55th wedding anniversary.

2005\607 Alec Bonander, West Lyon High School/Larchwood – For receiving 2nd place in the 189 lb. weight class in the Class 1-A Division of the 2005 State Wrestling Tournament.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

[House File 166](#)

Environmental Protection: Greiner, Chair; Shultz and Watts.

[House File 321](#)

State Government: Drake, Chair; Ford, Hutter, Quirk and Tomenga.

[House File 414](#)

Environmental Protection: Greiner, Chair; Anderson and Gaskill.

[House File 481](#)

Agriculture: Dolecheck, Chair; Frevert and Rayhons.

[House File 482](#)

Natural Resources: Rayhons, Chair; Davitt and Freeman.

[House File 489](#)

Environmental Protection: Greiner, Chair; Huseman and Kressig.

[House File 490](#)

Agriculture: Mertz, Chair; Kaufmann and Zirkelbach.

[House File 525](#)

Natural Resources: Arnold, Chair; Tjepkes and Whitaker.

HOUSE STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

[House Study Bill 220](#)

Education: Tymeson, Chair; Raecker and Wendt.

[House Study Bill 221](#)

Judiciary: Anderson, Chair; Berry and Hutter.

[House Study Bill 222](#)

Judiciary: Eichhorn, Chair; R. Olson and Tymeson.

House Study Bill 224

Commerce, Regulation and Labor: Dix, Chair; Jenkins and Wise.

House Study Bill 228

Education: Tymeson, Chair; Kaufmann and Wendt.

House Study Bill 229

Commerce, Regulation and Labor: Watts, Chair; Jenkins and Quirk.

House Study Bill 230

Commerce, Regulation and Labor: Horbach, Chair; Freeman and Quirk.

House Study Bill 231

Commerce, Regulation and Labor: Struyk, Chair; Kressig and Wilderdyke.

House Study Bill 232

Commerce, Regulation and Labor: Horbach, Chair; Freeman, Oldson, Struyk and Wise.

House Study Bill 233

Commerce, Regulation and Labor: Watts, Chair; Dix, Horbach, T. Taylor and Wise.

House Study Bill 234

Agriculture: S. Olson, Chair; De Boef and Mertz.

House Study Bill 235

Agriculture: Struyk, Chair; Mertz and S. Olson.

HOUSE STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 241 Human Resources

Relating to the providing of another business or activity in a health care facility.

H.S.B. 242 Oversight

Relating to electronic notices of bidding opportunities for state purchases and of any extension or renewal of existing contracts.

H.S.B. 243 Education

Relating to the duties and responsibilities of school districts, area education agencies, and the department of education by expanding school district audit requirements, requiring the department to submit an achievement gap report, changing deadlines and adding reporting requirements related to dropout and dropout prevention programs, eliminating an early school start date penalty, eliminating certain requirements for school district payments and settlements, authorizing school site sale revenues to be used for physical plant and equipment levy fund expenditures, allowing school districts to establish nonprofit entities or organizations, eliminating Code provisions related to extended school programs and evening and part-time schools, providing for changes to open enrollment requirements, deadlines, and authorizations, repealing a school district lawful fence requirement, expanding the penalties for school bus drivers in violation of Code requirements, revising requirements for prior authorization and a certificate of need for local option and services tax for school infrastructure fund use, and reinstating open enrollment eligibility under a certain circumstance related to desegregation plans.

H.S.B. 244 Economic Growth

Relating to requirements for tax credits issued for equity investments in a qualifying business or a community-based seed capital fund.

H.S.B. 245 State Government

Concerning payment of retained funds on public improvements.

H.S.B. 246 State Government

Providing for the establishment of a technology governance board within the department of administrative services, and making an appropriation.

H.S.B. 247 Agriculture

Relating to animal feeding operations, by providing for chronic complaints.

H.S.B. 248 Judiciary

A Concurrent Resolution requesting the establishment of an interim study committee by the legislative council to conduct a study of issues related to the costs of professional liability insurance for health care providers in Iowa.

H.S.B. 249 Judiciary

Relating to liens associated with agricultural production, by providing for the termination of those liens.

H.S.B. 250 Natural Resources

Relating to wild animals, by providing for their regulation, providing for fees and appropriations, and providing for penalties.

H.S.B. 251 Human Resources

Establish an advanced practice registered nurse compact and including a future repeal.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk.

MARGARET A. THOMSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 202](#)), relating to the regulation of agricultural seed, by providing for preemption of local legislation.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 462](#)), relating to the administration of the Iowa egg council, including by providing for the use, promotion, and research of eggs and egg products.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE, REGULATION AND LABOR

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 114](#)), prohibiting consideration of certain traffic accidents occurring in the course of an Iowa state patrol member's employment in establishment of motor vehicle insurance rates.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 90](#)), relating to the funding of the dual party relay service through assessments on telecommunications carriers providing telephone service.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 160](#)), relating to interstate natural gas pipelines including requirements regarding construction, operations, and maintenance, applicable penalties and resultant damages, and easements.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 188](#)), relating to the investment of public funds by the treasurer of state, state agencies, and political subdivisions including the investment of public funds not covered by federal deposit insurance in certificates of deposit.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC GROWTH

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 98](#)), relating to criteria and incentives under the new capital investment program and providing effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 354](#)), providing for the retention of solid waste tonnage fees by sanitary landfills for purposes of regional collection centers and third parties providing services similar to regional collection centers.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 2, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 181](#)), relating to reimbursement to owners of aboveground petroleum storage tanks for costs associated with the upgrade or permanent closure of aboveground petroleum storage tanks.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Do Pass** March 2, 2005.

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OVERSIGHT

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 123](#)), relating to dual governmental employment by executive branch officials and state employees.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 184](#)), revising child welfare requirements involving children with mental health, behavioral, or emotional disorders and providing a contingent effective date.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 95](#)), relating to assisted living programs, providing for application of a penalty, and providing for a fee.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 100](#)), relating to the membership of the council with which the director of human services consults regarding the medical assistance program.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 102](#)), relating to adult day services regulation and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 207](#)), relating to the disposal of personal property after entry of a judgment for forcible entry and detainer.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 71](#)), prohibiting a donation or contribution to an agency, organization, or political subdivision of the state in a criminal proceeding.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 108](#)), defining the term "possession" for purposes of the criminal law.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 202](#)), limiting causes of action against veterinary practitioners who provide care to animals suffering distress.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

COMMITTEE ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 173](#)), relating to the assessment and collection of penalty, fee, and interest charges imposed for the late payment of building code penalties, fines, and inspection and enforcement fees.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

Pursuant to Rule 31.7, [House File 534](#) was referred to the committee on ways and means.

COMMITTEE ON NATURAL RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 149](#)), relating to the regulation and registration of certain vessels, the operation of certain vessels by minors, inspections of certain vessels, the operation of vessels for hire or commercial vessels, providing for penalties, and appropriating the moneys collected from certain registration fee increases to the state fish and game protection fund.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 2, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 416](#)), providing for special senior crossbow deer hunting licenses.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Do Pass** March 2, 2005.

COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 61](#)), relating to the administrative functions of the department of cultural affairs, including the board of trustees of the state historical society of Iowa and the state records commission.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 80](#)), increasing the speed limit for vehicular traffic on the interstate highways.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** February 24, 2005.

Pursuant to Rule 31.7, [House File 513](#) was referred to the committee on ways and means.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 152](#)), relating to state department of transportation duties concerning its budget, distribution of state institutional, secondary, and farm-to-market road funds, vehicle weight restrictions, all-terrain vehicle use, and airport transferred to aviation authorities.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 1, 2005.

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 164](#)), providing a sales and use tax exemption for certain appliances that meet the energy efficiency rating established for the appliance by the United States environmental protection agency and providing an effective date.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 2, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House File 198](#)), relating to the property tax levy for emergency services provided to residents of certain townships and including effective date and applicability date provisions.

Fiscal Note is not required.

Recommended **Amend and Do Pass** March 2, 2005.

Committee Bill (Formerly [House Study Bill 189](#)), relating to the property taxation of nursing facilities and including effective and applicability date provisions.

Fiscal Note is required.

Recommended **Do Pass** March 2, 2005.

On motion by Jacobs of Polk the House adjourned at 7:06 p.m., until 8:45 a.m., Thursday, March 3, 2005.